Historic Resource Evaluation 631 & 635 Fifth Street, Santa Rosa, Sonoma County, California 95404 (APN 009-025-015-000)







Prepared for: Harold H. Robinson IV, President IGH Partners, LLC, Manager for 425 Humboldt, LLC 171 Main Street, Suite 606 Los Altos, CA 94022

Prepared by: Alice P. Duffee Healy, Historic Preservation Planner APD Preservation LLC January 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROJECT OVERVIEW & EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	3
METHODOLOGY	3
EVALUATOR QUALIFICATIONS	4
SITE LOCATION	4
DESCRIPTION	5
631 FIFTH STREET 635 FIFTH STREET	5 7
HISTORY OF PROJECT AREA	8
REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT	20
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) LOCAL REGULATIONS: City of Santa Rosa	20 21
RECOMMENDATION FOR DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY FOR 631 AND 635 FIFTH STI	<u>REET 22</u>
CRITERIA INTEGRITY ANALYSIS FOR 635 FIFTH STREET	22 24
CONCLUSION	25
RESOURCES CONSULTED	25
APPENDIX A: PHOTOGRAPHS	27
635 FIFTH STREET 631 FIFTH STREET SETTING	28 35 41
APPENDIX B: ARG'S DPR FORMS, 2021	43
APPENDIX C: DETAILED DPR FORMS FOR 631 & 635 FIFTH STREET (FORMS A, B, J, L)	49

Project Overview & Executive Summary

The owners of 631 and 635 Fifth Street in Santa Rosa, California, are assessing the historic character of the structures in anticipation of redeveloping the property. As part of the planning process, they hired me, an architectural historian and preservation planner with APD Preservation LLC, to undertake thorough research of the property to establish the property's historical uses, associations with notable people and events, and construction history. The ultimate purpose of this research is to evaluate the historic character of the property and identify what features, if any, render the property historically significant. This report is the result of that evaluation.

In 1859, Dr. C. C. Green and his partner, Lewis Lucas, subdivided a 22-acre parcel into "Green's Addition" with 77 lots; the project area is on portions of what were originally Lots 38-40. The northeast corner of the parcel was initially developed with a wood-frame Presbyterian Church and wood-frame dwelling from 1869-1899, and then a wood-frame warehouse for J.C. Mailer from 1906-1935. The Sonoma County Farmers' Mutual Insurance Company purchased the lot from J.C. Mailer's heirs in 1934 and hired a prominent local architectural firm—Herbert & Caulkins—to design an office headquarters. The original building, constructed in 1935, was in the "Art Deco" style, with a strong emphasis on verticality and limited ornamentation.

In 1972, Farmers' Mutual purchased the adjacent lot to the south and hired Lawrence Simons to design an addition to the 1935 building. The project involved modifying the 1935 building: the broad horizontal frieze of the new building was extended around the top of the original building, the vertical band of windows on the east (front) elevation of the original building were divided into individual windows and a door was cut into the southeast corner.

The buildings at 631 and 635 Fifth Street (built 1935 and 1973, respectively) are 90 and 52 years old, are not within any of Santa Rosa's designated historic districts and are not included in Santa Rosa's "Cultural Heritage Survey." They are not included in any other state, national or local surveys and are not included in the California Office of Historic Preservation's "Built Environment Resource Directory (BERD)."

In 2021, Architectural Resources Group (ARG) included both properties in their windshield survey of the "Downtown Station Area, 1946-1974" and made a preliminary determination that 635 Fifth Street "does not appear potentially eligible for listing" and that 631 Fifth Street "appears eligible for listing as a City of Santa Rosa Landmark and in the [CA Register] as an embodiment of significant patterns of commercial development in the Downtown Station Area" (5S3, 3CS).

I concur with the determination that the building at <u>635 Fifth Street does not qualify as an historic resource</u>. It is not associated with a significant event or person and is not architecturally distinctive.

For <u>631 Fifth Street</u>, it is my professional opinion that the building <u>lacks sufficient integrity</u> to express its early history. Modifications to the building in 1972 altered the original "Art Deco" building to the extent that it no longer conveys its association with Santa Rosa's early twentieth century commercial development, no longer conveys its association with its designers—Herbert & Caulkins, a regionally significant architectural firm—and is no longer a strong example of the popular 1930s architectural style.

Therefore, it is my professional opinion that neither building qualifies as an historic resource under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) or Santa Rosa's Historic Preservation Ordinance.

Methodology

On 19 December 2024, I undertook a field survey of the property to conduct a visual review and assessment of the property. I conducted records searches at the following repositories, as well as a variety of online research websites:

- Sonoma County Recorder's office
- Northwest Information Center (NWIC)
- City of Santa Rosa (Building and Planning departments)
- California Digital Newspaper Collection
- Online newspaper archives
- Online Archive of California and a variety of online research websites

Evaluator qualifications

I personally conducted the research of the buildings at 631 and 635 Fifth Street in Santa Rosa, California. I hold a Master of Science degree in Historic Preservation from the University of Pennsylvania and a Bachelor of Arts in Architectural History from the University of Virginia. I have been working in the field of Cultural Resources Management for 33 years, 28 of which have been in Northern California. For the past 14 years, I have focused my attention on projects in the Bay Area. I exceed the standards for "Architectural Historian" as defined by the Code of Federal Regulations (36 CFR Part 61) and am listed in the California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS) as a consultant qualified to work in the fields of Architectural History and History.

Site Location

The buildings at 631 and 635 Fifth Street sit on the east side of Fifth Street and the south side of Humboldt Street, at the northwest corner of Fifth and Humboldt, in the city of Santa Rosa. The streetscape is minimal landscaping around commercial structures from the twentieth and twenty first centuries. These sections of Fifth and Humboldt streets have two lanes of traffic (two-way) and street parking on both sides.



Location of 631 and 635 Fifth Street (Sonoma County parcel map 009-02)



Aerial view of Parcel (Google Earth 2024)

Description

631 Fifth Street

P

This building on the northwest corner of Humboldt and Fifth streets is a two-story, flat-roofed commercial structure built of poured concrete faced in stucco (see below and figure 16 in Appendix A). The surface of the roof is not discernable from the street. Projecting piers divide the primary façade into three vertical bays. Each bay has an opening at the ground level and at the upper level. A modern glass plate door is in the southeast corner. The remaining windows are multi-lite rolled steel with decorative circular motifs (see figure below and in Appendix A). A water course rises several feet above the ground level and has a shaped stucco cap. A modern (1972) wood frieze with vertical slats surrounds the roof parapet on all four elevations.



The side elevation (fronting Humboldt Street) repeats the vertical motif pattern with 5 bays of two-story windows. The elongated windows cross both stories of the building and have rolled, multi-lite, steel sash with decorative circle and wheat chaff motifs at the upper level (see figure below and in Appendix A). The water course continues around this elevation and is interrupted by modern, metal foundation vents (see figure below and in Appendix A).



The rear (west) elevation has a louvered vent and no other openings and no water course, though the modern frieze does wrap around this elevation (see figure above).

The south elevation abuts the 1972 addition (635 Fifth Street) and has no openings or water course, though it too has the modern frieze.

The building at 631 Fifth Street is a late example of the Art Deco style with its vertical emphasis, smooth wall surfaces, geometric window motifs and buttresses.¹

¹ Virginia Savage McAlester, <u>A Field Guide to American Houses</u> (Alfred A. Knopf, NY: 2014), p. 581.

635 Fifth Street

The primary façade faces Fifth Street and abuts 631 Fifth Street to the north and 625 Fifth Street to the south. This one-story concrete building has a flat roof that is not visible from the ground level. A modern frieze with vertical slats and wide horizontal wood boards extends across both the front and rear elevations. On each end of the building, the vertical slats extend to ground level to create a hyphen where the building connects to its neighbors to the north and south (see figure below and in Appendix A). A high, stucco water course extends across the piers of the front and rear elevations.

A modern glass pane door in a metal frame is centered on the façade between two concrete piers; two plate glass windows set in metal frames are to the north of the door, also between the piers. More plate glass windows fill the spaces north and south of the entrance; a bank of wood cabinetry projects from below each bank of windows on the north and south (see figure below and in Appendix A).



The front elevation is mirrored on the rear of the building with a central door flanked by banks of plate glass windows atop projecting wood bases. The rear, however, has two bays instead of three. The vertical boards of the frieze extend to the ground level to create hyphens at the rear elevation, as well. A section of vertical board paneling is at the north end of the window banks (see figure 14 in Appendix A). Both the north and south elevations are attached to neighboring buildings.



The building at 635 Fifth Street is not representative of any particular style, though the architect's interest in Frank Lloyd Wright is evidenced by the vertical board frieze and horizontality.

History of Project Area

Santa Rosa developed on land originally settled by the widowed mother-in-law of General Vallejo: Maria Ignacia Lopez de Carrillo. Following the death of her husband, Joaquin Carrillo, in 1835 the 43-year-old Maria Carrillo traveled north from San Diego with 9 of her 12 children. Left without an income, Maria Carrillo followed advice from a family friend, Father Fortuni, who extolled the opportunities and virtues of the Sonoma Area. At the same time, General Vallejo, who had married Carrillo's daughter, Francisca Benicia, was actively surveying the area and establishing Ranchos to establish Mexico's claim on the area.

The widow and her sons, with advice from General Vallejo and his brother Salvador, scouted the area and selected a site on the southern bank of the main arm of the Arroyo de Santa Rosa. They established their home site half a mile east of the intersection of the main branch of the Arroyo Santa Rosa and a subsidiary arm in an area the mission fathers called "La Matanza." Today, the ruins of that early adobe ranch stand near the intersection of Farmer's Lane and Highway 12.

Maria Carrillo's 8,885-acre land grant was called Rancho Cabeza de Santa Rosa, and was the only northern land grant deeded outright to a woman.

In 1849, a year after Mexico ceded California to the United States and at the beginning of California's Gold Rush, Maria Ignacia Lopez de Carrillo died at the age of 56. Her son Julio Maria Tomas Carrillo (1824–1889) inherited the bulk of the grant and patented the land in 1866.²

In 1850, a French-Canadian fur trapper named Oliver Beaulieu bought 640 acres of the Rancho Cabeza de Santa Rosa from Julio Carrillo, and in 1853 laid out a town on the north bank of the Santa Rosa Creek at the junction of roads leading to Bodega and Sonoma, near the Carrillo Adobe. He named the town "Franklin" after his younger brother.

In 1851 Sterling Taylor "Squire" Coulter (1828-1906) arrived in Sonoma County from Missouri via Placerville. Born in Kentucky in 1828, Squire Coulter served as a Corporal in the Mexican War. He settled in Franklin, and bought the general store from Boyce & Clark in 1853, shortly before marrying Rachel Cockrill (1832-1916).



Coulter Family in front of house at 935 Cleveland Avenue. Squire Coulter seated front (ND)

The town of "Franklin," however, was short-lived. Barney Hoen donated land to build a courthouse for a county seat half a mile downstream from the Carrillo Adobe; and in the summer of 1853, Hoen drove the first survey stake for what would become Santa Rosa. The town was laid out in a standard grid pattern with a central plaza that showcased the courthouse. The new town of Santa Rosa became the county seat of Sonoma County in 1854, and the earlier structures of the town of Franklin were physically relocated to the new town center.

Downtown, wood commercial and residential structures populated the grid, while on the outskirts of town orchards and vineyards dominated the landscape.

² Land case #124, Northern District.



Sonoma Democrat, April 28, 1858

In 1859, Dr. C. C. Green and his partner, Lewis Lucas, purchased a twenty-acre tract abutting the north side of the town's grid and developed the first of many "additions" to the town of Santa Rosa. Green was born in Kentucky in 1825 and relocated to Santa Rosa by at least April 1858, when he advertised his new medical practice next to the Eureka Hotel in the downtown area. He and Lucas purchased the tract from Berthold Hoen, J. W. Hartman and Feodore Gustave Hahman for \$2,000 on 16 August 16 1859;³ and W. A. Eliason surveyed it into 77 lots within two weeks. The map was filed with the county on 1 June 1860. Green and his partner divvied up the lots in 1861, at which time the two men began actively marketing the parcels for sale.



Map of Green's Addition, 25 August 1859 "(project area indicated)⁴

³ Sonoma County Records, Deed Book 9, page 155.

⁴ Sonoma County Records, Map Book 1, page 2.



1876 Map of Santa Rosa (Thompson), Presbyterian Church on site of project area

The railroad arrived in Santa Rosa 1870, followed by streetlights in 1872. The town grew exponentially through the end of the nineteenth century, with more permanent brick and stone buildings rising in prominent locations around the downtown area and the railroad station. Larger residences in the most popular styles of the period (Greek Revival, Queen Anne, Italianate, and Stick/Eastlake) were erected near the downtown area. Numerous other real estate developers followed the example of Dr. C. C. Green and subdivided large tracts of land adjacent to the downtown area.

During the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" developed into a primarily residential area, with a wide variety of one- and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project area is on the eastern halves of lots 39 and 40 and a portion of lot 38.

Martha Schultz purchased lots 39 and 40 from C. C. Green in 1860 and then donated them to the First Presbyterian Church in 1868. The church had formed in Santa Rosa in 1858 and had begun planning for a building in 1859. The new building was dedicated on 25 July 1869.⁵ In 1875, one journalist described Fifth Street and the church as:

a broad and beautiful Street—being 60 feet wide and having a row of shade trees on either side....This is emphatically the church street of Santa Rosa—there being four churches fronting it. The Presbyterian Church, a tolerably large edifice, is situated on the corner of Fifth and Humboldt....The Presbyterian is painted brown.⁶

According to Sanborn maps, it had a rectangular footprint with a spire and covered porch centered on the primary façade on Fifth Street (see Sanborns below).

In 1891, the congregation sold this building and built a grander church at Humboldt and Johnson. John Parsons and Rachell Marshall purchased the old church, which they rented out to a variety of civic and private organizations over the next eight years.^{7 8}

⁵ Sonoma Democrat, 17 July 1869.

⁶ Ibid., 13 November 1875.

⁷ Sonoma County Records, Deed Book 132, p. 73.

⁸ Various newspaper articles, <u>www.newspapers.com</u> and <u>www.cdnc.ucr.edu</u>.



Old Presbyterian Church, No Date (ca. 1869-1899)⁹

⁹ Gaye LeBaron, Dee Blackman, Joann Mitchell and Harvey Hanson, <u>Santa Rosa: A Nineteenth Century Town</u> (Clarity Publishing Services, 1985), p. 160.



Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, December 1885 (project area indicated)



Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, September 1888 (project area indicated)



Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, June 1893 (project area indicated)



Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, December 1904 (project area indicated)



Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, 1908 - showing "Mailer Warehouse" (project area indicated)



Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, 1950 (project area indicated)

A LANDMARK GOING

Old Presbyterian Church to Be Moved Away

It Will Now Be Used as a Hop Barn —Neat Cottages Will Ocenpy the Site

An old landmark will shortly be lost to view on the corner of Fifth and Humboldt streets by the removal of the old Presbyterian church which has been a familiar object in this city for many years past. The building will be moved to Mrs. Rachel Marshall's hopyard near town and will there be utilized as a hop barn.

For some time past Mrs. Marshall, who owns the building, has contemplated its removal and the erection on the site which she also owns of two neat cottages. On Monday Contractor Martz and some workmen commenced the 'task of preparing the building for removal.

Yesterday a sudden crash informed people living near and those on the street that the steeple no longer pointed heavenward, but had made a rude descent to earth. The workmen had assisted the topping process with their saws and all that was necessary to pull down the steeple was a stout rope affixed around the pinnacle and their stout muscle. Now all that remains of the steeple is a pile of kindling wood. After the building is removed it is probable some weeks will elapse before the erection of the residences is commenced.

12 July 1899, Press Democrat

In July 1899, Rachel Marshall moved the church, without the spire, to her farm outside of Healdsburg to be used as a hop barn. While the newspaper reported that Marshall planned to build two cottages on the site, the 1904 Sanborn map indicates that the site remained vacant.

Following the death of Rachel Marshall on 9 March 1903;¹⁰ James Clark Mailer (1844-1920) purchased lots 39 and 40 (the old church site) from her estate on 6 May 1904.¹¹ Mailer had a large hardware store on Fourth street and planned to build a two story brick warehouse and apartment building (60' x 90') on the Fifth Street site.¹²

Work was well underway when the 18 April 1906 earthquake struck and devastated most of downtown Santa Rosa, including Mailer's hardware store on Fourth Street. Mailer pivoted to his new building project, changing the design to a one-story frame building to serve as a warehouse and store to replace his Fourth Street property.

Work on J. C. Mailer's new building on the corner of Fifth and Humboldt streets will be rushed. Considerable of the stock of the Mailer Hardware Company has been saved.

24 April 1906, Santa Rosa Republican

The 1908 Sanborn map shows this new warehouse. The one-and-onehalf story house that had occupied the southern end of the project area (on the site of 635 Fifth Street) since at least 1885 was replaced with two small stores (see Sanborn above).

The property remained in the Mailer family until the grandchildren of James Clark Mailer sold the property to the Sonoma County Farmers' Mutual Insurance Company via the Sonoma County Abstract Bureau in 1934.^{13 14}

Sonoma County Farmers' Mutual Insurance company incorporated in January 1898 with its headquarters in Santa Rosa.¹⁵ By the time it purchased the corner lot on Fifth and Humboldt the company was well established and growing steadily. They immediately hired the local architecture firm Herbert & Caulkins to design their new office headquarters. Louis Halvorsen was awarded the construction contract in March 1935 and building permits were issued in April 1935.^{16 17}

¹⁰ www.ancestry.com.

¹¹ Sonoma County Records, Official Records Book 213, p 11.

¹² <u>Press Democrat</u>, 13 December 1905.

¹³ Sonoma County Records, Official Records Book 377, p. 261.

¹⁴ Ibid., Official Records Book 377, p. 262.

¹⁵ <u>Cloverdale Reveille</u>, 15 January 1898.

¹⁶ Press Democrat, 8 March 1935.

¹⁷ Santa Rosa Republican, 6 April 1935.

William Herbert and Cal Caulkins formed a partnership in 1932. "Bill" Herbert was born in Illinois in 1886, served in World War I as a lieutenant in the air service in "air craft production," married Abbie Churchill in 1918 and was living in Santa Rosa and working as an architect by 1920.¹⁸ Clarence ("Cal") Caulkins was born in Montana in 1898, went to architecture school at the University of California Berkeley and married Grace Avery in 1933.¹⁹ Herbert had been practicing architecture in Santa Rosa as early as 1920, while Caulkins had been working in Oakland and Monterey from at least 1928 - 1932.

In Santa Rosa, the two architects designed a wide variety of civic, commercial and residential projects. They employed several architectural styles, with projects in the Tudor, Mission and Moderne styles. The Farmers' Mutual Insurance building, designed in the "Moderne" style, presented "dignified by very modern front[s]" on both Fifth and Humboldt streets. The corner buttress visually anchored the building and rose to fluted caps in front of an offset parapet. The steel sash windows were "decorated with cadmium plated ventilating sections" (see figures below).²⁰ The building opened its doors on 5 August 1935.



Press Democrat, 4 August 1935

¹⁸ www.ancestry.com

¹⁹ Ibid.

²⁰ Press Democrat, 4 August 1935.



Press Democrat, 4 August 1935

The company continued to grow over the next three decades, absorbing other insurance companies along the way. In honor of their 75th anniversary, Farmers Mutual embarked on an expansion project. At the end of 1971, they purchased the adjacent 40' x 100' lot south of the building,²¹ and in early 1972 they hired Lawrence Simons to design an addition to be built along Fifth Street. They hired Todd Construction as the contractor, and broke ground on 15 June 1972. A "Notice of Completion" was filed with the county on 15 January 1973.²²



Press Democrat, 23 April 1972

The original drawing published in the <u>Press Democrat</u> in April 1972 did not show significant changes to the original 1935 building on the corner of Fifth and Humboldt (see figure above). The "Notice of Completion," however, described the project as "additions and alterations" and the drawing included in the opening announcement does include the modifications to the frieze of the 1935 building (see figure below).



Press Democrat, 26 January 1973

²¹ Sonoma County Records, Official Records Book 2592, p. 670.

²² Ibid., Official Records Book 2727, p. 733.



Press Democrat, 9 September 1973

According to the architect's drawing for the building, it appears that the wood cabinetry under the windows originally had vertical trim to match the frieze and served as planter boxes for landscaping (see figure above). The vertical frieze was applied to all elevations of the 1935 building, as well, assumably as a unifying feature.



Former planter on East elevation

Sometime after 1973, the windows on the east elevation of the 1935 building were modified. The plate glass door was added at the southeast corner and the original vertical bands of windows were divided into smaller individual windows (see figure 16 in Appendix A).



1963 Aerial view, project area indicated²³



1977 Aerial view, project area indicated²⁴

 ²³ City of Santa Rosa GIS, Historic Aerials (https://maps.srcity.org/Html5Viewer/Index.html?viewer=AerialViewer&Center=6375999,1920000).
²⁴ Ibid.

Date	Owner	Reference
10/15/1981	Humboldt, a general partnership	1981059352
12/20/1978	James B/Edith J Keegan	OR 3499-351
1/15/1973	NOTICE OF COMPLETION - 635 Fifth St.	OR 2727-733
12/29/1971	Farmers Mutual Insurance (becomes Aid Insurance) – adding 40'x100'	OR 2592-670
8/12/1935	NOTICE OF COMPLETION – 631 Fifth St.	OR 389-393
1/14/1935	Sonoma County Farmers' Mutual Insurance Company	OR 377-262
12/18/1934	Sonoma County Abstract Bureau	OR 377-261
5/13/1932	Catherine Mailer, Jean Margaret Mailer, James Clark Mailer (1/3 each) - inherit	OR 315-484
5/6/1904	J.C. Mailer	OR 213-11
5/28/1891	John J Parsons & Rachel Marshall, Santa Rosa	DB 132-73
5/25/1868	Presbyterian Church of Santa Rosa	DB 24-30
12/30/1860	Martha Schultz – lots 39 & 40	DB 11-183
8/16/1859	C C Green	DB 9-155
UNK	Berthold Hoen, J W Hartman, Feodore Gustave Hahman	UNK

Regulatory Environment

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)

CEQA (PRC §21084.1) and its associated guidelines for implementation (CCR Title 14, Chapter 3, sections 15000 et seq.) provide direction and guidance for evaluating properties, and the preparation of Initial Studies, Categorical Exemptions, Negative Declarations, and Environmental Impact Reports. Pursuant to California State law, the City of Santa Rosa is legally responsible and accountable for determining the environmental impact of any land use proposal it approves. Cultural resources are aspects of the environment that require identification and assessment for potential significance under CEQA (14 CCR § 15064.5 and PRC § 21084.1).

The California Office of Historic Preservation (OHP) defines five classes of cultural resources:

- **Building**: A structure created principally to shelter or assist in carrying out any form of human activity. A "building" may also be used to refer to a historically and functionally related unit, such as a courthouse and jail or a house and barn.
- **Structure**: A construction made for a functional purpose rather than creating human shelter. Examples include mines, bridges, and tunnels.
- **Object**: Construction is primarily artistic in nature or relatively small in scale and simply constructed. It may be movable by nature or design or made for a specific setting or environment. Objects should be in a setting appropriate to their significant historic use or character. Examples include fountains, monuments, maritime resources, sculptures, and boundary markers.
- Site: The location of a significant event. A prehistoric or historic occupation or activity, or a building or structure, whether standing, ruined, or vanished, where the location possesses historical, cultural, or archaeological value regardless of the value of any existing building, structure, or object. A site need not be marked by physical remains if it is the location of a prehistoric or historic event and if no buildings, structures,

or objects marked it at that time. Examples include trails, designed landscapes, battlefields, habitation sites, Native American ceremonial areas, petroglyphs, and pictographs.

• **Historic District**: Unified geographic entities which contain a concentration of historic buildings, structures, or sites united historically, culturally, or architecturally.

According to CEQA § 15064.5, a cultural resource is "significant" if it meets at least one of the following four criteria:²⁵

- 1. listed in the California Register of Historical Resources (PRC §5024.1 Title 14 CCR, Section 4850 et seq);
- 2. determined eligible for listing the California Register by the State Historic Preservation office;
- 3. included in a local register of historical resources (as defined in PRC §5024.1(g); OR
- 4. determined by the lead agency, through the presence of substantial evidence, to be historically significant because of its association with significant events, association with significant persons, architectural distinction, or potential to yield information important in history or prehistory.

LOCAL REGULATIONS: City of Santa Rosa

The City of Santa Rosa adopted an "Historic and Cultural Preservation Ordinance" in 1988 and includes an "Historic Preservation" element in its <u>Santa Rosa General Plan 2035</u>. The ordinance created the "Santa Rosa Cultural Heritage Board," which "recommends to the City Council designation of landmarks and preservation districts, reviews permits for alterations to landmarks, and promotes public awareness of historic resources."²⁶

Santa Rosa considers a "landmark" to be:

any site, including significant trees or other significant permanent landscaping located thereon, place, building, structure, street, street furniture, sign, work of art, natural feature or other object having a specific historical, archaeological, cultural or architectural value in the City and which has been designated a landmark by the City Council. (Ord. 2668 § 1, 1988; Ord. 2897 § 2, 1991)²⁷

An historic resource is defined as a resource that it is:

- Listed in or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historic Places (CA Register)
- Included in the local register of historic resources
- Listed in or eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP)

Santa Rosa's criteria for evaluating historic significance are:

- (i) the resource is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history and cultural heritage;
- (ii) is associated with the lives of persons important in our past;
- (iii) embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region or method of construction, or represents the work of an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values;
- (iv) has yielded or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history.

In addition, a resource must retain sufficient integrity of location, design, setting materials, workmanship, feeling and association to relay its historic character.²⁸

²⁵ https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IFFC7DA00D48511DEBC02831C6D6C108E?viewType=Full&transitionType=Default&contextD ata=(sc.Default)

²⁶ Santa Rosa General Plan 2035, p. 11-2.

²⁷ Santa Rosa Municipal Code, §17-22.030.

²⁸ Ibid., § 20-70.020 (H)(6)(d).

Recommendation for Determination of Eligibility for 631 and 635 Fifth Street

The California Environmental Quality Act (PRC §21084.1) and its associated guidelines for implementation (CCR Title 14, Chapter 3, sections 15000 et seq.) defines historic resources as any object, building, structure, site, area, place, record or manuscript that, in general, meets at least one of the following four criteria:²⁹

- 1. listed in the California Register of Historical Resources (PRC §5024.1 Title 14 CCR, Section 4850 et seq);
- determined eligible for listing the California Register by the State Historic 2. Preservation office;
- included in a local register of historical resources (as defined in PRC §5024.1(g); 3. OR
- 4. determined by the lead agency, through the presence of substantial evidence, to be historically significant because of its association with significant events, association with significant persons, architectural distinction, or potential to yield information important in history or prehistory.

The buildings at 631 and 635 Fifth Street (built 1935 and 1973, respectively) are 90 and 52 years old, are not within any of Santa Rosa's designated historic districts and are not included in Santa Rosa's "Cultural Heritage Survey." They are not included in any other state, national or local surveys and are not included in the California Office of Historic Preservation's "Built Environment Resource Directory (BERD)."

In 2021, Architectural Resources Group (ARG) included both properties in their windshield survey of the "Downtown Station Area, 1946-1974" and made a preliminary determination that 635 Fifth Street "does not appear potentially eligible for listing" and that 631 Fifth Street "appears eligible for listing as a City of Santa Rosa Landmark and in the [CA Register] as an embodiment of significant patterns of commercial development in the Downtown Station Area" (5S3, 3CS) (see ARG's survey DPR forms in Appendix B).

CRITERIA

According to the California Office of Historic Preservation (OHP), a building, structure or object is eligible for listing in the California Register if it meets one or more of the four following criteria:³⁰

Criteria	631 Fifth Street	635 Fifth Street
1. Associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of local or regional history or the cultural heritage of California or the United States.	This 1972 building was part of Santa Rosa's mid- to late- twentieth century commercial growth and expansion. This commercial pattern in Santa Rosa was typical of communities across the country at this time. This single structure as an individual structure, however, is insufficient to represent the growth trend.	This 1935 building was part of Santa Rosa's commercial growth in the first few decades of the twentieth century. Residential blocks in the downtown area were transformed to commercial uses and existing commercial uses were upgraded. The construction of the Farmer's Mutual Insurance Building, which replaced a 1906 warehouse, is representative of this civic improvement trend. Changes made to the building in 1972 and later, however, have <u>compromised</u> the ability of the building to express its association with the early twentieth century commercial transformation of Santa Rosa (see integrity analysis below).

²⁹ https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IFFC7DA00D48511DEBC02831C6D6C108E?viewType=Full&transitionType=Default&contextD ata=(sc.Default) ³⁰ Pub. Res. Code 5024.1, Title 14 CCR, Section 4852.

2.	Associated with the lives of persons important to local, California or national history.	The building is not associated with any significant people. The architect for this building (Lawrence Simons) was active in Sonoma County through the 1960s and 1970s and focused his work on civic and commercial projects. He was not known for employing or advancing any particular style. His contributions to Santa Rosa, though not inconsequential, do not rise to the level of historic.	The original building is associated with the architectural firm of Herbert & Caulkins, who were active in Santa Rosa as a partnership from 1932-1936. Their prolific work in the civic, commercial and residential sectors contributed to Santa Rosa's transformation into a cosmopolitan city. Changes made to the building in 1972, however, compromised the ability of the building to express its association with its regionally significant designers.
3.	Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region or method of construction or represents the work of a master or possesses high artistic values.	The modest commercial building is neither architecturally significant nor the work of a master builder or architect.	The original design of this 1935 commercial building was a good example of the Art Deco style that was popular across the country in the 1930s. In 1972, however, modifications made to the significantly <u>compromised</u> the original design. The application of the vertical board frieze truncated the verticality of the building. The tall bands of windows on the primary (east) elevation were divided into smaller units, also interrupting the distinctive vertical emphasis. These modifications have compromised the integrity of design, feeling and association of the building to the extent that it is no longer a good example of the Art Deco style. (See integrity analysis below for greater detail.)
4.	Has yielded, or has the potential to yield, information important to the prehistory or history of the local area, California or the nation	The project area does not feature construction or material types, or embody engineering practices that would, with additional study, provide important information. My evaluation of this property was limited to resources above ground and did not involve survey or evaluation of the subject property for the purposes of archaeological information.	The project area does not feature construction or material types, or embody engineering practices that would, with additional study, provide important information. My evaluation of this property was limited to resources above ground and did not involve survey or evaluation of the subject property for the purposes of archaeological information.

B

INTEGRITY ANALYSIS FOR 635 FIFTH STREET

Integrity is the ability of a property to convey its historic significance. It consists of seven aspects: location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling and association.³¹

Integrity Element	635 Fifth Street	Conclusion
Location ("place where the property was built")	The building retains its integrity of location as it has not been moved or relocated.	INTACT
Design ("combination of elements that create the form, plan, space, structure, and style" (NPS)	The building's original "Art Deco" design has been compromised by alterations made in 1972. The verticality of the building was compromised both by the application of a wide horizontal frieze and the division of the tall bands of windows on the east (primary) elevation into smaller windows. The distinctive fluting on the buttresses was replaced by the 1972 frieze.	<u>COMPROMISED</u>
Setting ("physical environment")	The dense commercial setting is more representative of the late twentieth century than the 1930s.	COMPROMISED
Materials	With the exception of the original frieze that has been removed, the 1935 materials are intact on the side (north) elevation. They have been adversely impacted on the primary elevation by truncating the banks of windows. Stucco dividers were added between the windows, and an entrance was also cut into the southeast corner.	<u>COMPROMISED</u>
Workmanship ("evidence of labor and skill")	While the distinctive "cadmium ventilation sections" remain on the windows of the north and east elevations, the building's original and distinctive fluting on the buttresses was replaced by the 1972 frieze.	<u>COMPROMISED</u>
Feeling ("expression of the aesthetic or historic sense of a particular period of time")	While elements of the original massing and materials remain, the building no longer feels like a 1930s "Art Deco" structure because of the removal of its fluted caps and application of horizontal elements to counteract the verticality of the original design.	<u>COMPROMISED</u>
Association ("direct link between an important historic event or person")	The building no longer represents the design of its architects, Herbert & Caulkins, and has therefore lost its association with this regionally significant firm.	<u>COMPROMISED</u>

 $^{^{31} \} http://www.nps.gov/nr/publications/bulletins/nrb15/nrb15_8.htm$

Conclusion

The buildings at 631 and 635 Fifth Street (built 1935 and 1973, respectively) are 90 and 52 years old, are not within any of Santa Rosa's designated historic districts and are not included in Santa Rosa's "Cultural Heritage Survey." They are not included in any other state, national or local surveys and are not included in the California Office of Historic Preservation's "Built Environment Resource Directory (BERD)."

In 2021, Architectural Resources Group (ARG) included both properties in their windshield survey of the "Downtown Station Area, 1946-1974" and made a preliminary determination that 635 Fifth Street "does not appear potentially eligible for listing" and that 631 Fifth Street "appears eligible for listing as a City of Santa Rosa Landmark and in the [CA Register] as an embodiment of significant patterns of commercial development in the Downtown Station Area" (5S3, 3CS) (see ARG's survey DPR forms in Appendix B).

I concur with the determination that the building at <u>635 Fifth Street does not qualify as an historic resource</u>. It is not associated with a significant event or person and is not architecturally distinctive.

For <u>631 Fifth Street</u>, it is my professional opinion that the building <u>lacks sufficient integrity</u> to express its early history. Changes made to the building in 1972 modified the original "Art Deco" building to the extent that it no longer conveys its association with Santa Rosa's early twentieth century commercial development, no longer conveys its association with its designers_Herbert & Caulkins, a regionally significant architectural firm—and is no longer a good example of the popular 1930s architectural style.

Therefore, it is my professional opinion that neither building qualifies as an historic resource under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) or Santa Rosa's Historic Preservation Ordinance.

Resources Consulted

Blumenson, John J-G. Identifying American Architecture. New York, New York: W.W. Norton & Company, 1985.

Bowers, A.B. Map of Sonoma County, California. 1867.

- California Office of Historic Preservation. "Technical Assistance Series #6 California Register and National Register: A Comparison (for purposes of determining eligibility for the California Register)." (http://ohp.parks.ca.gov/pages/1069/files/technical%20assistance%20bulletin%206%202011%20update.pdf)
- City of Santa Rosa. <u>Santa Rosa General Plan 2035</u>. 2 November 2009. Updated October 2024. (https://www.srcity.org/DocumentCenter/View/24327/Santa-Rosa-General-Plan-2035-PDF---October-2024)
- Elliot, Jeff. "Today you saw Cal Caulkins." 6 August 2018. (http://santarosahistory.com/wordpress/2018/08/today-yousaw-cal-caulkins/)
- Fraser-Munro, J. P. <u>History of Sonoma County V2</u>, <u>Including its Geology</u>, <u>Topography</u>, <u>Mountains</u>, <u>Valleys and</u> <u>Streams (1879)</u>. San Francisco, CA: Alley, Brown & Co. Publishers, 1880.
- Kirker, Harold. <u>California's Architectural Frontier: Style and Tradition in the Nineteenth Century</u>. Salt Lake City, UT: Gibbs M. Smith, Inc. 1960.
- Kirker, Harold. <u>Old Forms on a New Land: California Architecture in Perspective</u>. Niwot, CO: Roberts Rinehart Publishers. 1991.
- LeBaron, Gaye, Dee Blackman, Joann Mitchell and Harvey Hanson. <u>Santa Rosa: A Nineteenth Century Town</u>. Clarity Publishing Services, 1985.

LeBaron, Gaye and Joann Mitchell. Santa Rosa: A Twentieth Century Town. Clarity Publishing Services, 1993.

Lewis Publishing Company. <u>Illustrated History of Sonoma County, California</u>. Chicago, IL: Lewis Publishing Company, 1889.

McIntire & Lewis. Official Map of the County of Sonoma, California. 1908.

- Morrow, Irving F. AIA. "Architectural Regions: Do They Exist?" <u>Architect and Engineer</u>. November 1940, p. 22-39. (https://www.survivorlibrary.com/library/architect and engineer vol 143-144 1940.pdf).
- Morton, W. Brown III; Hume, Gary L; Weeks, Kay D; Jandl, H. Ward. <u>The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for</u> <u>Rehabilitation & Illustrated Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings</u>. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of the Interior. 1992.
- Munro-Fraser, J.P. <u>History of Sonoma County, Including its Geology, Topography, Mountains, Valleys and Streams</u> <u>V1 (1879</u>). San Francisco, CA: Alley, Bowen & Co. Publishers, 1880.
- Nelson, Lee H. <u>Preservation Brief 17: Architectural Character—Identifying the Visual Aspects of Historic Buildings</u> as an Aid to Preserving their character. Washington, DC: National Park Service, 1988.
- "Old Days in Church Will Be Recalled." Press Democrat, 19 October 1930.
- Peterson, Geraldine and Dan Peterson. <u>Santa Rosa's Architectural Heritage</u>. Santa Rosa, CA: Sonoma County Historical Society, 1982.
- Pinney, Thomas. <u>A History of Wine in America: From the Beginnings to Prohibition.</u> Berkeley, CA: University of California Press, 1989.

The Press Democrat.

Reynolds & Proctor. Atlas of Sonoma. Santa Rosa, CA: 1898.

Ricksecker, L.E. and Walkup, W.B. Official Map of Sonoma County. Santa Rosa, CA: 1908.

Thompson, Robert A. <u>Historical and Descriptive Sketch of Sonoma County, California</u>. Philadelphia, PA: L.H. Everts & Co., 1877.

Thompson, Thomas H. <u>New Historical Atlas of Sonoma County</u>. Oakland, CA: Thos. H. Thompson & Co., 1877 (reprinted by Sonoma County Historical Society, 2003).

Online resources:www.accessible.comhld.huntington.org/cdm/wwwwww.ancestry.comwww.loc.govwwwwww.archives.comwww.cdnc.ucr.eduwwwwww.archives.orgwww.geneaologybank.comwwwwww.newspaperarchives.comwww.parcelquest.comhttp://heritage.sonomalibrary.org/cdm/landingpage/collection/p15763coll2

www.calisphere.universityofcalifornia.edu www.ohp.parks.ca.gov www.newspapers.com www.proquest.com

Appendix A: Photographs

635 Fifth Street	
Figure 1: East elevation, fronting Fifth Street	
Figure 2: East elevation, in context with neighbor to the south (625 Fifth Street)	
Figure 3: East elevation, detail of junction with neighbor to south (625 Fifth St0	
Figure 4: East elevation, junction with neighbor to the north (631 Fifth Street)	
Figure 5: East elevation, front door	
Figure 6: East elevation, window cabinetry detail	
Figure 7: East elevation, pier detail	
Figure 8: East elevation, lower part of hyphen connecting to neighbor to the north (631 Fifth Street)	
Figure 9: West elevation, rear	32
Figure 10: West elevation, door and windows	32
Figure 11: West elevation, junction with neighbor to north (631 Fifth Street)	33
Figure 12: West elevation, junction with neighbor to south (625 Fifth)	33
Figure 13: West elevation, hyphen connecting to neighbor to north (631 Fifth Street)	
Figure 14: West elevation, window and cabinetry detail	
Figure 15: West elevation, window frame detail	35

631 Fifth Street

B

Figure 16: East elevation, fronting Fifth Street	
Figure 17: East elevation, junction with neighbor to the south (635 Fifth)	
Figure 18: East elevation, upper window detail	
Figure 19: North elevation, fronting Humboldt Street	
Figure 20: North elevation, window and frieze detail	
Figure 21: North elevation, window detail	
Figure 22: North elevation, foundation vent	
Figure 23: North and west elevations, NW corner	
Figure 24: West elevation, rear	
Figure 25: West elevation, stucco patches at lower level	
Figure 26: South elevation, stucco patch at junction with west neighbor (635 Fifth)	
Figure 27: South elevation, stucco patches	

635 Fifth Street



Figure 1: East elevation, fronting Fifth Street



Figure 2: East elevation, in context with neighbor to the south (625 Fifth Street)



Figure 3: East elevation, detail of junction with neighbor to south (625 Fifth St0



Figure 4: East elevation, junction with neighbor to the north (631 Fifth Street)



Figure 5: East elevation, front door



Figure 6: East elevation, window cabinetry detail

E



Figure 8: East elevation, lower part of hyphen connecting to neighbor to the north (631 Fifth Street)

B



Figure 9: West elevation, rear



Figure 10: West elevation, door and windows

B



Figure 11: West elevation, junction with neighbor to north (631 Fifth Street)



Figure 12: West elevation, junction with neighbor to south (625 Fifth)



Figure 13: West elevation, hyphen connecting to neighbor to north (631 Fifth Street)



Figure 14: West elevation, window and cabinetry detail



Figure 15: West elevation, window frame detail

631 Fifth Street

E



Figure 16: East elevation, fronting Fifth Street



Figure 17: East elevation, junction with neighbor to the south (635 Fifth)



Figure 18: East elevation, upper window detail


Figure 19: North elevation, fronting Humboldt Street



Figure 20: North elevation, window and frieze detail

E



Figure 21: North elevation, window detail



Figure 22: North elevation, foundation vent

B



Figure 23: North and west elevations, NW corner



Figure 24: West elevation, rear



Figure 25: West elevation, stucco patches at lower level



Figure 26: South elevation, stucco patch at junction with west neighbor (635 Fifth)

40



Figure 27: South elevation, stucco patches

<u>Setting</u>

Appendix B: ARG's DPR forms, 2021

S3, 3CS
S3, 3CS
B.M
B.W
۱N
oncrete
ght - all, Decorative
cular muntin details
, accession #)
, accession #)
, accession #)
Both
Both
Both
Both 4/35)
☐ Both 4/35)
Both 4/35) a, and address)
Both 4/35) a, and address) ctural Resources os Angeles, CA
c

DPR 523A (1/95)

State of California The Resour	ces Agency			Primary #	
EPARTMENT OF PARKS AND	RECREATION			HRI	
BUILDING, STRUCTI	JRE AND OBJ	ECT RECOR	D		
NRHP Status Code 5S3, 3CS					
	County Farmers Mutu	al Fire Insurance Co			
2. Common Name:					
3. Original Use: Commercial			B4. Prese	nt Use: Commercial	
B5. Architectural Style PW	A Moderne/Stripped C	assical			
B6. Construction History: (Cor eplaced - secondary, Signage ac riginal signage remains underne	ded/replaced, Wood s			rations-Decorative elements added. Door replaced - primary sually unify with 1970s building to west (appears reversible, t	
B7. Moved? No	Yes	Unknown	Date:	Original Location:	
B8. Related Features:					
9a. Architect: Herbert & Cau	kins	b. Builder:	Louis Halvorsen	c. Owner: Sonoma County Farmers Mutual Fire Insurance	Co.
Sa. Alchilect. Therbert & Gau		loomont 1007 104		Area Santa Rosa	
B10. Significance: Them	 Commercial Deve 	iopinieni, 1907-1940	,	Juou Bana Hoba	

Context: Interim Growth and Development of the Downtown Station Area, 1907-1945 Theme: Commercial Development, 1907-1945 Property Type: Commercial

The property appears eligible for listing as a City of Santa Rosa Landmark and in the California Register of Historical Resources as an embodiment of significant patterns of commercial development in the Downtown Station Area during its transitional development period from 1907 to 1945. Constructed in 1935 for the Sonoma County Farmers Mutual Fire Insurance Co., it is an excellent example of an intact 1930s commercial building in this part of the city and retains sufficient integrity to convey its association with historic patterns of commercial development.

This property may also be eligible for its PWA Moderne/Stripped Classical design by notable local architect Herbert and Caulkins. However, due to the later addition of a wood slat frieze/cornice, the integrity of the original parapet and integral signage above the entry cannot be determined without further investigation. It remains unevaluated under Criteria C/3/iii.

B11. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes)

- *B12. References: (See Continuation Sheet 3)
- B13. Remarks:
- *B14. Evaluator: Mary Ringhoff, Diana Painter, Architectural Resources Group, 360 E. 2nd Street, Suite 225 Los Angeles, CA 90012

*Date of Evaluation: 6/09/2022





DPR 523B (1/95)

Page: 3 of 4	
State of California The Resources Agency	Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION	HRI
CONTINUATION SHEET	
*Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 631 5th Street	
Recorded By: ARG	Date: 6/09/2022 Continuation

*B12. References (continued from page 2):

Architectural Resources Group, Inc. and Painter Preservation. "Downtown Station Area Historic Resources Evaluation." Prepared for the City of Santa Rosa Planning and Economic Development Department, 2022.

Bloomfield, Anne. "Cultural Heritage Survey of the City of Santa Rosa, California." Prepared by Anne Bloomfield Architectural History for the City of Santa Rosa Department of Community Development, August 1989.

California Office of Historic Preservation. Built Environment Resource Directory (BERD), Sonoma County. Accessed June 2021-June 2022, https://ohp.parks.ca.gov/? page_id=30338.

City of Santa Rosa. Downtown Station Area Specific Plan. Prepared by Dyett & Bhatia for the City of Santa Rosa, adopted October 2020.

County of Sonoma. ParcelQuest, County of Sonoma. (n.d.). Accessed August 2021-June 2022, https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CRA/Assessor/Real-Property/Search-Parcel-Info/#assessorsearch.

LeBaron, Gaye and Joann Mitchell. Santa Rosa, A Twentieth Century Town. Santa Rosa, CA: Historia, Ltd., 1993.

LeBaron, Gaye, Dee Blackman, Joann Mitchell, and Harvey Hansen. Santa Rosa, A Nineteenth Century Town. Santa Rosa, CA: Historia, Ltd., 1985.

McAlester, Virginia Savage. A Field Guide to American Houses. New York: Alfred A. Knopf, 2015.

Peterson, Dan, Dan Peterson AIA & Associates, Santa Rosa: Historic Resource Survey, 1977. On file at History and Genealogy Library, Sonoma County Public Library, Santa Rosa, CA.

Sanborn Fire Insurance Company Maps, 1885, 1888, 1893, 1904, 1908, and 1950. On file, History and Genealogy Library, Sonoma County Public Library, Santa Rosa, CA.

Santa Rosa City and Sonoma County Directories, various dates. On file, History and Genealogy Library, Sonoma County Public Library, Santa Rosa, CA.

Santa Rosa Press Democrat, various dates.

Santa Rosa Republican, various dates.

DPR 523L (1/95)



Rendering in the Press Democrat 8/4/35

DPR 523L (1/95)

٦

SERVER ALL OF BARKO AND DEODEATION		Primary #	
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION		HRI Trinomial #	
PRIMARY RECORD		NRHP Status Code	e6Z
	Other Listings		
Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 635 5th Street	Review Code	Reviewer	Date
P1. Other Identifier:		-	
P2. Location: Not for Publication	Unrestricted		
*a.County Sonoma and (P2c, P2e, and P2b or P2d. *b. USGS 7.5' Quad Date	Attach a Location Map as necessary.)		of Sec B.M.
c. Address 635 5th Street	T ;R City Santa		Zip 95401
d. UTM: (Give more than one for large and/or linear resource	/	; mE/	mN
e. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource	ce, elevation, etc., as appropriate)		
Descriptions (Describe resource and its main element	e laslude design meterials condition	alterations aire setting and he	(undering)
P3a. Description: (Describe resource and its major elements		· · · · •	undaries)
Evaluation: Not eligible		hitectural Style: No style	
Historic Property Type: Commercial	Alterations:	Other Alterations-Door replaced	 primary, Signage added/replaced
Current Property Type: Commercial			
Context: Context: Downtown Station Area, 1946-1974. Theme ntegrity:	: Commercial Development, 1946-197	74. Property Type: Commercial.	
ntegrity: ilgnificance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property	•		
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present:	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	ally eligible for listing.	Dther:
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes)	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	ally eligible for listing. □Element of District □(P5b. Description of F	hoto: (view, date, accession #)
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	ally eligible for listing.	hoto: (view, date, accession #)
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	Element of District 7 View north, 10/19/20	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	ally eligible for listing.	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	Element of District 7 View north, 10/19/20	hoto: (view, date, accession #)
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	Ally eligible for listing. Element of District P5b. Description of F View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric Doth
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	Element of District C P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct Sources: V Historice	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric Doth
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present:	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	Element of District C P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct Sources: V Historice	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric D Both
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	Image: Second struct Image: Second struct Image: Second struct P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct Sources: Image: Historic 1972 (building permit) *P7. Owner and Add	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric D Both
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	Element of District C P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct Sources: V Historic 1972 (building permit	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric D Both
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	■ Element of District □ (1) P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct Sources: Sources: ✓ Historic 1972 (building permit) *P7. Owner and Add Not Recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Mary Ringhoff, Diana	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric D Both
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present:	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	□ Element of District □ (1) P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct Sources: ♥ Historic 1972 (building permit) *P7. Owner and Add Not Recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Mary Ringhoff, Diana Group, 360 E, 2nd S)	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric Both) Iress: Name, affiliation, and address) Painter, Architectural Resources reet, Suite 225 Los Angeles, CA
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present:	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	■ Element of District □ (P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20) *P6. Date Construct Sources: ♥ Historic 1972 (building permit) *P7. Owner and Add Not Recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Mary Ringhoff, Diana Group, 360 E. 2nd S) 90012 *P9. Date Recorded	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric Both A Iress: Name, affiliation, and address) Painter. Architectural Resources reet, Suite 225 Los Angeles, CA
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	■ Element of District □ (P5b. Description of P5b. Description of PView north, 10/19/20) *P6. Date Construct Sources: □ Historic 1972 (building permit) *P7. Owner and Add Not Recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Mary Ringhoff, Diana Group, 360 E, 2nd Si 90012 *P9. Date Recorded *P10. Survey Type:	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric Both) Iress: Name, affiliation, and address) Painter, Architectural Resources reet, Suite 225 Los Angeles, CA : 10/19/2021 (Describe)
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	■ Element of District □ (P5b. Description of P5b. Description of PView north, 10/19/20) *P6. Date Construct Sources: ☑ Historic 1972 (building permit *P7. Owner and Add Not Recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Mary Ringhoff, Diana Group, 360 E. 2nd Si 90012 *P9. Date Recorded *P10. Survey Type: □ Intensive ☑ Recorded	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric Both Tress: Name, affiliation, and address) Painter. Architectural Resources reet, Suite 225 Los Angeles, CA : 10/19/2021 (Describe) nnaissance
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua HP6. 1-3 story commercial building Object Site District	ally eligible for listing. □ Element of District □ (°) P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct Sources: ☑ Historic 1972 (building permit *P7. Owner and Add Not Recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Mary Ringhoff, Diana Group, 360 E. 2nd Sr 90012 *P9. Date Recorded *P10. Survey Type: □Intensive P11. Report Citatio sources or enter "nor	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric Both I Iress: Name, affiliation, and address) Painter. Architectural Resources reet, Suite 225 Los Angeles. CA I 10/19/2021 (Describe) nnaissance n: (Cite survey report and other ne".) ARG, "Downtown Station ce Evaluation" (prepared for the
ntegrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: ØBuilding Structure	y does not appear potentially individua <u>HP6. 1-3 story commercial building</u> <u>Object Site District</u> gs, structures, or objects)	ally eligible for listing. □ Element of District □ (P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20) P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct Sources: ☑ Historic 1972 (building permit *P7. Owner and Add Not Recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Mary Ringhoff, Diana Group, 360 E. 2nd St 90012 *P9. Date Recorded *P10. Survey Type: □Intensive Record *P11. Report Citation sources or enter "nor Area Historic Resourcity of Santa Rosa, 2	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric Both I Iress: Name, affiliation, and address) Painter. Architectural Resources reet, Suite 225 Los Angeles. CA I 10/19/2021 (Describe) nnaissance n: (Cite survey report and other ne".) ARG, "Downtown Station ce Evaluation" (prepared for the
Integrity: Significance: Due to lack of historical significance, the property P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) P4. Resources Present: P Building Structure P5a. Photograph or Drawing (Photograph required for building) P5a. Photograph or Drawing (Photograph required for building)	y does not appear potentially individua <u>HP6. 1-3 story commercial building</u> <u>Object Site District</u> gs, structures, or objects)	ally eligible for listing. □ Element of District □ (P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20) P5b. Description of P View north, 10/19/20 *P6. Date Construct Sources: ☑ Historic 1972 (building permit *P7. Owner and Add Not Recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Mary Ringhoff, Diana Group, 360 E. 2nd St 90012 *P9. Date Recorded *P10. Survey Type: □Intensive Record *P11. Report Citation sources or enter "nor Area Historic Resourcity of Santa Rosa, 2	hoto: (view, date, accession #) 21 ed/Age and Prehistoric Both Image: Both Ima

DPR 523A (1/95)

Appendix C: Detailed DPR Forms for 631 & 635 Fifth Street (forms A, B, J, L)

PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial NRHP Status Code	State of California The Resources Agency DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION		• •			ary #			
Review Code Reviewer Date Page 1 of 8 *Resource Name or #: (Assigned by recorder) 631 Fifth Street, Santa Rosa				UNEATION			Code		
								Date	Listing
	· · _			Name or #: (Ass	signed by	recorder)			
	*a.	,	Sonoma		2021				p as necessary.) B.M.

d. UTM: (Give more than one for large and/or linear resources) Zone <u>105, 524999.81</u> mE/ <u>4254862.92</u> mN

e. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, decimal degrees, etc., as appropriate) Green's Addition, Lots 38-40

*P3a. Description: (Describe resource and its major elements. Include design, materials, condition, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries)

This building on the northwest corner of Humboldt and Fifth streets is a two-story, flat-roofed commercial structure built of poured concrete faced in stucco. The surface of the roof is not discernable from the street. Projecting piers divide the primary façade into three vertical bays. Each bay has an opening at the ground level and at the upper level. A modern glass plate door is in the southeast corner. The remaining windows are multi-lite rolled steel with decorative circular motifs. A water course rises several feet above the ground and has a shaped stucco cap. A modern (1972) wood frieze with vertical slats surrounds the roof parapet on all four elevations. The side elevation, fronting Humboldt Street, repeats the vertical pattern with 5 bays of two-story windows. The elongated windows cross both stories of the building and have rolled multi-lite steel sash with decorative circle and wheat chaff motifs at the upper level. The water course continues around this elevation and is interrupted by modern metal foundation vents. The rear (west) elevation has a louvered vent and no other openings and no water course, though the modern frieze does wrap around this elevation. The south elevation abuts the 1972 addition (635 Fifth Street) and has no openings or water course, though it too has the modern frieze.



***P3b.** Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) HP6 (1-3 story commercial building)

*Attachments: NONE 🛛 Location Map 🖾 Continuation Sheet 🖾 Building, Structure, and Object Record Archaeological Record District Record Linear Feature Record Milling Station Record Rock Art Record Artifact Record Photograph Record Other (List):

DPR 523A (9/2013)

BU	e of California The Resources Agency Primary # ARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI# ILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD
*Reso	urce Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 631 Fifth Street, Santa Rosa *NRHP Status Code 6Z 2 of 8
B1. B2. B3. * B5. * B6 .	Historic Name: 631 Fifth Street Common Name: 631 Fifth Street Original Use: Commercial Architectural Style: Art Deco Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of alterations) 1935 built (Notice of Completion).
*B8.	Moved? X No Yes Unknown Date: Original Location: Related Features:
None B9a. *B10.	Architect: Herbert & Caulkins b. Builder: Louis Halverson Significance: Theme Commercial Development Area Santa Rosa
up the The ra ninetee the rai Stick/I Green During of one- of lot 3 B11.	n surveyed it into 77 lots within two weeks. The map was filed with the county on 1 June 1860. Green and his partner of 10ts in 1861, at which time the two men began actively marketing the parcels for sale. altroad arrived in Santa Rosa 1870, followed by streetlights in 1872. The town grew exponentially through the end enth century, with more permanent brick and stone buildings rising in prominent locations around the downtown are ilroad station. Larger residences in the most popular styles of the period (Greek Revival, Queen Anne, Italianal Eastlake) were erected near the downtown area. Numerous other real estate developers followed the example of Dr and subdivided large tracts of land adjacent to the downtown area. g the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" developed into a primarily residential area, with a wide - and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project area is on the northern half of lots 39 and 40 and a northern p 88 (see figure on Continuation Sheet 4 of 8). <i>(see Continuation Sheet 4 of 8)</i> Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) HP6 (1-3 story commercial building) References: Historic Resource Evaluation," January 2025. owers, A.B. Map of Sonoma County, California. 1867.







Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, December 1885 (project area indicated)

ⁱ Sonoma Democrat, 17 July 1869.

ⁱⁱ Ibid., 13 November 1875.

ⁱⁱⁱ Sonoma County Records, Deed Book 132, p. 73.

^{iv} Various newspaper articles, <u>www.newspapers.com</u> and <u>www.cdnc.ucr.edu</u>

DPR 523L (9/2013)







The company continued to grow over the next three decades, absorbing other insurance companies along the way. In honor of their 75th anniversary, Farmers Mutual embarked on an expansion project. At the end of 1971 they purchased the 40' x 100' lot south of the building' and in early 1972 they hired Lawrence Simons to design an addition to be built along Fifth Street (635 Fifth Street). They hired Todd Construction as the contractor, and broke ground on 15 June 1972. A "Notice of Completion" for the addition was filed with the county on 15 January 1973.ⁱⁱ

Current Historical Status:

The building is 90 years old, is not within any of Santa Rosa's designated historic districts and is not included in Santa Rosa's "Cultural Heritage Survey." It is not included in any other state, national or local surveys and are not included in the California Office of Historic Preservation's "Built Environment Resource Directory (BERD)." In 2021 Architectural Resources Group (ARG) included the property in their windshield survey of the "Downtown Station Area, 1946-1974" and made a preliminary determination that 631 Fifth Street ""appears eligible for listing as a City of Santa Rosa Landmark and in the [CA Register] as an embodiment of significant patterns of commercial development in the Downtown Station Area" (5S3, 3CS).

ⁱ Sonoma County Records, Official Records Book 2592, p. 670. ⁱⁱ Ibid., Official Records Book 2727, p. 733.

DPR 523L (9/2013)

State of California - The R DEPARTMENT OF PARKS	AND RECREATION	Primary# HRI # Trinomia		
CONTINUATION	SHEET			
Property Name:			631	Fifth Street, Santa Rosa
Page <u>8</u> of <u>8</u>				
*Recorded by: Alice Dut	ffee Healy *Date	Jan. 2025	X Continuation	Update
-	(CONTINUED)			
decades of the twentieth of commercial uses were upg warehouse, is representative the ability of the building to	entury. Residential bloc raded. The construction e of this civic improvem express its association	the sin the downtown of the Farmer's Muthematic the formation of the farmer's muthematic the search of the search	area were transformed t tal Insurance Building, ade to the building in 19 h century commercial tra	
Caulkins, who were active i	n Santa Rosa as a partne a Rosa's transformation	rship from 1932-1936. n into a cosmopolitar	Their prolific work in the city. Changes made to	architectural firm of Herbe civic, commercial and resident the building in 1972, howe signers.
style that was popular acro design. The application of th (east) elevation were divid	oss the country in the 1 ne vertical board frieze tr led into smaller units,	930s. In 1972, howeve uncated the verticality also interrupting the	er, modifications signific of the building. The tall I distinctive vertical emp	a good example of the Art I antly <u>compromised</u> the orig ands of windows on the prin hasis. These modifications l no longer a good example o
practices that would, with a	dditional study, provide	e important informatio	n. My evaluation of this j	al types, or embody enginee property was limited to resou archaeological information.
It is my professional opinion Register, or Santa Rosa's "C	n, therefore, that the buil cultural Heritage Survey	lding does not meet th " because it lacks suffi	e criteria for listing in the cient integrity to convey	California Register, the Nati its 1935 origins and associati
*B12. References: (C	-			
	Ũ	,	6	8/08/today-you-saw-cal-caulkin
	<u>of Sonoma County V2, I</u> ey, Brown & Co. Publish		<u> Topography, Mountains</u>	Valleys and Streams (1879).
LeBaron, Gaye, Dee Blackn Services, 1985.	nan, Joann Mitchell and	Harvey Hanson. <u>San</u>	a Rosa: A Nineteenth C	<u>entury Town</u> . Clarity Publis
LeBaron, Gaye and Joann M	litchell. <u>Santa Rosa: A T</u>	wentieth Century Tow	<u>n. C</u> larity Publishing Ser	vices, 1993.
Lewis Publishing Company	. Illustrated History of S	onoma County, Calife	<u>rnia</u> . Chicago, IL: Lewis	Publishing Company, 1889.
McIntire & Lewis. Official N	Map of the County of Sor	noma, California. 1908		
Morrow, Irving F. AIA. "Ar (https://www.surviv	chitectural Regions: Do orlibrary.com/library/arch			er 1940, p. 22-39.
		0 07 1	ography, Mountains, Va	lleys and Streams V1 (1879).
	ey, Bowen & Co. Publish			
1982.			<u>e</u> . Santa Rosa, CA: Sonor	na County Historical Society
Reynolds & Proctor. Atlas o				
-	_		_	a, PA: L.H. Everts & Co., 187
Thompson, Thomas H. <u>New</u> Sonoma County H	<u>v Historical Atlas of Son</u> istorical Society, 2003).	<u>oma County</u> . Oakland	, CA: Thos. H. Thompson	n & Co., 1877 (reprinted by
Online resources:				
www.accessible.com www.ancestry.com	www.calisphere.univer www.loc.govwww.ohr			<u>rcelquest.com</u> neaologybank.com
······································				hives.org

P

		The Resources	• •	Primary #		
			REATION	HRI #		
PRII	MARY RI	ECORD		Trinomial NRHP Status Code		
		O	ther			Listin
		Re	eview Code	Reviewer	Date	
L						
Page	<u>1</u> of her Identifier:	8 *Resource Na	ame or #: (Assigne	ed by recorder)	635 Fifth Stree	<u>t, Santa Rosa</u>)9-025-015-00
11.00	iei identiliei.				AINO	JJ-02J-01J-00
*P2.	Location:	Not for Public	cation X l	Jnrestricted		\
	. County	Sonoma Quad Santa Rosa	a Date 2		P2d. Attach a Location Map a of of Sec ;	s necessary.) B.M.
c.	Address	635 Fifth Street	City	Santa Rosa Zip	95404	
d.			-	resources) Zone <u>105, 525018</u>		
e.		tional Data: (e.g., p s Addition, Lots 38-		o resource, elevation, decimal de	egrees, etc., as appropriate)	
*P3a.				elements. Include design, mate	erials, condition, alterations, s	ize, setting,
	boundaries)		-	-		2.
				Fifth Street to the north and 6		
				the ground level. A modern freevations. On each end of the b		
level to	create a hyp	hen where the bui	lding connects to	its neighbors to the north and	l south. A high, stucco water	course exter
across	the piers of t	he front and rear	elevations. A me	odern plate glass pane door v	with metal frame is centered	1 on the faça
betwee	n two concret	e piers; two plate g	glass windows se rth and south of	t in metal frames are to the nor the entrance; a bank of wood	rth of the door, also between	the piers. M
plate g			i ui anu souui oi	the entrance, a bank of wood	capitieury projects from pero	
windov	ws on the nor	th and south. The	front elevation is	mirrored on the rear of the bu	uilding with a central door fl	anked by ba
of plate	ws on the nor e glass windo	th and south. The ws atop projecting	front elevation is g wood bases. Th	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays	uilding with a central door fl instead of three. The vertic	anked by ba al boards of
of plate frieze e	ws on the nor e glass windo extend to the g	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect	uilding with a central door fl s instead of three. The vertication of vertical board panelin	anked by ba al boards of
of plate frieze e	ws on the nor e glass windo extend to the g	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays	uilding with a central door fl s instead of three. The vertication of vertical board panelin	anked by ba al boards of
of plate frieze e	ws on the nor e glass windo extend to the g	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect	uilding with a central door fl s instead of three. The vertication of vertical board panelin	anked by ba al boards of
of plate frieze e	ws on the nor e glass windo extend to the g the window b	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to cre- anks. Both the nor	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect	tilding with a central door fl s instead of three. The vertication of vertical board panelin ring buildings.	anked by ba al boards of
of plate frieze e end of t	ws on the nor e glass windo extend to the g the window b	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to cre- anks. Both the nor	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor	tilding with a central door fl s instead of three. The vertication of vertical board panelin ring buildings.	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no
of plate frieze e end of t	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u>	tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The vertical tion of vertical board panelin ring buildings. building *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object	anked by ba al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist
of plate frieze e end of * P3b .	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor	tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The vertic tion of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of Distric	anked by bar al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist
of plate frieze e end of † *P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The vertic tion of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of Distric (Isolates, etc.)	anked by ba al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot
of plate frieze e end of † *P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d
of plate frieze e end of † *P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The vertic tion of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of Distric (Isolates, etc.)	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no t: A Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d , East Elevati
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of Distric (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) <u>12/19/24</u> *P6. Date Construct	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no t: A Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d , East Elevati
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: Historic Both	t: X Build Site Dist table Content of the second site Dist table Content of the second table Content of table Cont
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 ilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of Districe (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Phacession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic 	t: X Build Site Dist table Content of the second site Dist table Content of the second table Content of table Cont
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The vertic, tion of vertical board panelin ring building. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) <u>12/19/24</u> *P6. Date Construct Source: Mistoric Both <u>1973 (Notice of Comp</u>	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d t, East Elevati ted/Age a Prehistoric letion)
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: Historic Both	anked by ba al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d t, East Elevati ted/Age a Prehistoric letion)
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 inding with a central door fl. instead of three. The vertication of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of Districe (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Phaceession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded 	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d <u>, East Elevati</u> ted/Age a Prehistoric letion)
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 inding with a central door fl. instead of three. The vertication of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Structure Object Element of Districe (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (N 	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d <u>, East Elevati</u> ted/Age a Prehistoric letion)
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 tilding with a central door flassinstead of three. The vertication of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of District (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Nand address) Alice Duff 	anked by baa al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d t, East Elevati ted/Age a Prehistoric letion) ss: lame, affiliat fee Healy, A
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 inding with a central door fl. instead of three. The vertication of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Structure Object Element of Districe (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (N 	anked by baa al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d t, East Elevati ted/Age a Prehistoric letion) ss: lame, affiliat fee Healy, A
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of District (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Nand address) Alice Dut Preservation LLC, 1312 Glen Ellen, CA 95442 *P9. Date Recorded: 	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d <u>, East Elevati</u> ted/Age a Prehistoric letion) sss: lame, affiliat fee Healy, A 25 Arnold 1 January 2(
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 tilding with a central door fl. is instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of District (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Nand address) Alice Dut Preservation LLC, 1312 Glen Ellen, CA 95442 *P9. Date Recorded: *P10. Survey Type: (Nand addres) 	anked by ba al boards of g is at the nc t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d <u>, East Elevat</u> ted/Age a Prehistoric letion) sss: lame, affiliat fee Healy, A 25 Arnold 1 January 26
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 tilding with a central door fl. instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of District (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Nand address) Alice Dut Preservation LLC, 1312 Glen Ellen, CA 95442 *P9. Date Recorded: 	anked by ba al boards of g is at the nc t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d <u>, East Elevat</u> ted/Age a Prehistoric letion) sss: lame, affiliat fee Healy, A 25 Arnold 1 January 26
of plate frieze e end of † *P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 tilding with a central door fl. is instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of District (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Nand address) Alice Dut Preservation LLC, 1312 Glen Ellen, CA 95442 *P9. Date Recorded: *P10. Survey Type: (Nand addres) 	anked by ba al boards of g is at the no site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d <u>, East Elevat</u> ted/Age a Prehistoric letion) ss: lame, affiliat <u>fee Healy, A</u> 25 Arnold D January 20 Describe)
of plate frieze e end of † *P3b. P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 tilding with a central door fl. is instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of District (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Phacession #) <u>12/19/24</u> *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Nand address) <u>Alice Duff</u> Preservation LLC, 1312 Glen Ellen, CA 95442 *P9. Date Recorded: *P11. Report Citation report and other sources, 	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d bits Elevati ted/Age a Prehistoric letion) sss: lame, affiliat fee Healy, A 25 Arnold D January 20 Describe) :: (Cite survey or enter "none
of plate frieze e end of * P3b . P5a.	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to crea anks. Both the nor .ttributes: (List at	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a	 tilding with a central door fl. is instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of District (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) <u>12/19/24</u> *P6. Date Construct Source: Mistoric Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Nand address) Alice Duf *P9. Date Recorded: *P9. Date Recorded: *P10. Survey Type: (Intensive *P11. Report Citation report and other sources, "Historic Resource Evaluation of the sources, "Historic Resource Evaluation of the sources of the s	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d bits Elevati ted/Age a Prehistoric letion) sss: lame, affiliat fee Healy, A 25 Arnold D January 20 Describe) :: (Cite survey or enter "none
of plata frieze e end of f *P3b. P5a. objects	ws on the nor e glass windo extend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph (,)	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to create anks. Both the nor attributes: (List at or Drawing (F	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elev ttributes and codes Photograph requir	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a <i>(see Continuation Sheet 5 of 8)</i>	 tilding with a central door fl. is instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of District (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) 12/19/24 *P6. Date Construct Source: A Historic Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Nand address) Alice Duf Preservation LLC, 1312 Glen Ellen, CA 95442 *P9. Date Recorded: *P10. Survey Type: (Intensive *P11. Report Citation report and other sources, "Historic Resource Evaluation of the source source Evaluation of the source source Evaluation of the source source Evaluation of the sources and the sources of the source source Evaluation of the source source	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no t: X Build Site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d bits Elevati ted/Age a Prehistoric letion) sss: lame, affiliat fee Healy, A 25 Arnold D January 20 Describe) :: (Cite survey or enter "none
<pre>of plata frieze e end of f *P3b. P5a. objects </pre>	ws on the nor e glass windo xtend to the g the window b Resource A Photograph	th and south. The ws atop projecting ground level to create anks. Both the nor attributes: (List at or Drawing (F	front elevation is g wood bases. Th ate hyphens at the th and south elevation is g wood bases. The second s	mirrored on the rear of the bu e rear, however, has two bays e rear elevation, as well. A sect ations are attached to neighbor <u>) HP6 (1-3 story commercial</u> ed for buildings, structures, a <i>(see Continuation Sheet 5 of 8)</i>	 tilding with a central door fl. is instead of three. The verticition of vertical board panelin ring buildings. *P4.Resources Presen Structure Object Element of District (Isolates, etc.) P5b. Description of Ph accession #) <u>12/19/24</u> *P6. Date Construct Source: Mistoric Both 1973 (Notice of Comp *P7. Owner and Addree Not recorded *P8. Recorded by: (Nand address) Alice Duf *P9. Date Recorded: *P9. Date Recorded: *P10. Survey Type: (Intensive *P11. Report Citation report and other sources, "Historic Resource Evaluation of the sources, "Historic Resource Evaluation of the sources of the s	anked by bai al boards of g is at the no si at the no si at the no site Dist ct Ot oto: (view, d <u>bailed</u> oto: (view, d <u>bailed</u> oto: (view, d <u>bailed</u> site <u>letion</u>) <u>letion</u>) <u>letion</u>) <u>lame</u> , affiliat <u>fee Healy, A</u> <u>25 Arnold 1</u> <u>lanuary 2(</u> Describe) : (Cite survey or enter "none lation," <u>lanuar</u>

BU	of California The Resources Agency Primary : RTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#	
*Reso	urce Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 635 Fifth Street, Santa Rosa	*NRHP Status Code 6Z
Page	<u>2</u> of <u>8</u>	
B1.	Historic Name:635 Fifth Street	
B2.	Common Name: <u>635 Fifth Street</u>	
B3. * B5 .	Original Use: <u>Commercial</u> Architectural Style: N/A	B4. Present Use: Commercial
	Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of alter	erations)
	1973 built (Notice of Completion, OR 2727-733).	
*B7	Moved? 🕅 No Yes Unknown Date:	Original Location:
	Related Features:	
N.T.		
None		
B9a.	Architect: Lawrence Simons	b. Builder: Todd Construction (
*B10.	Significance: Theme <u>20th Century Commercial Expansion</u>	Area Santa Rosa
	Period of Significance 1972-3 Property Type Comme	ercial Applicable Criteria None
	(Discuss importance in terms of historical or architectural context as de integrity.)	
divvie The ra ninetee the rai Stick/I	son surveyed it into 77 lots within two weeks. The map was filed d up the lots in 1861, at which time the two men began actively ma ilroad arrived in Santa Rosa 1870, followed by streetlights in 187 enth century, with more permanent brick and stone buildings risin ilroad station. Larger residences in the most popular styles of t Eastlake) were erected near the downtown area. Numerous other	Keting the parcels for sale. 2. The town grew exponentially through the end g in prominent locations around the downtown are he period (Greek Revival, Queen Anne, Italianate real estate developers followed the example of Dr
During variety	and subdivided large tracts of land adjacent to the downtown area g the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" of of one- and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project ar n of lot 38 (see figure on Continuation Sheet 4 of 8.	developed into a primarily residential area, with a ea is on the northern half of lots 39 and 40 and a no
During variety	g the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" of one- and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project ar	developed into a primarily residential area, with a ea is on the northern half of lots 39 and 40 and a no <i>(see Continuation Sheet 4 of</i>)
During variety portion B11. *B12 .	g the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" of of one- and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project ar n of lot 38 (see figure on Continuation Sheet 4 of 8. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) <u>HP6</u> References:	developed into a primarily residential area, with a ea is on the northern half of lots 39 and 40 and a noi <i>(see Continuation Sheet 4 of</i> (1-3 story commercial building)
During variety portion B11. *B12. • "F • Bc • Ci 20 (ht	g the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" of of one- and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project ar n of lot 38 (see figure on Continuation Sheet 4 of 8. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) <u>HP6</u> References: Historic Resource Evaluation," January 2025. wers, A.B. <u>Map of Sonoma County, California</u> . 1867. ity of Santa Rosa. <u>Santa Rosa General Plan 2035</u> . 2 November 109. Updated October 2024. <u>https://twww.srcity.org/DocumentCenter/View/24327/Santa-Rosa-General-Plan-2</u> <u>5-PDFOctober-2024/B13</u> .	developed into a primarily residential area, with a ea is on the northern half of lots 39 and 40 and a no (see Continuation Sheet 4 of
During variety portion B11. *B12. • "F • Bc • Ci 20 (ht 03 Reman	g the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" of of one- and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project ar n of lot 38 (see figure on Continuation Sheet 4 of 8. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) <u>HP6</u> References: Historic Resource Evaluation," January 2025. owers, A.B. <u>Map of Sonoma County, California</u> . 1867. ity of Santa Rosa. <u>Santa Rosa General Plan 2035</u> . 2 November 109. Updated October 2024. <u>https://www.srcity.org/DocumentCenter/View/24327/Santa-Rosa-General-Plan-2</u> <u>5-PDFOctober-2024/B13</u> . rks:	developed into a primarily residential area, with a ea is on the northern half of lots 39 and 40 and a nor <i>(see Continuation Sheet 4 of</i> (1-3 story commercial building) (Sketch Map with north arrow required.)
During variety portion B11. *B12. • "F • Bc • Ci 200 (<u>Int</u> 03 Reman	g the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" of of one- and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project ar n of lot 38 (see figure on Continuation Sheet 4 of 8. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) <u>HP6</u> References: Historic Resource Evaluation," January 2025. wers, A.B. <u>Map of Sonoma County, California</u> . 1867. ity of Santa Rosa. <u>Santa Rosa General Plan 2035</u> . 2 November 109. Updated October 2024. <u>https://twww.srcity.org/DocumentCenter/View/24327/Santa-Rosa-General-Plan-2</u> <u>5-PDFOctober-2024/B13</u> .	developed into a primarily residential area, with a ea is on the northern half of lots 39 and 40 and a no. <i>(see Continuation Sheet 4 of</i> (1-3 story commercial building)
During variety portion B11. *B12. • "F • Bc • Ci 200 (<u>ht</u>) 03 Remai *B14.	g the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" of of one- and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project ar n of lot 38 (see figure on Continuation Sheet 4 of 8. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) <u>HP6</u> References: Historic Resource Evaluation," January 2025. owers, A.B. <u>Map of Sonoma County, California</u> . 1867. ity of Santa Rosa. <u>Santa Rosa General Plan 2035</u> . 2 November 109. Updated October 2024. <u>http://www.srcity.org/DocumentCenter/View/24327/Santa-Rosa-General-Plan-2</u> <u>5-PDFOctober-2024/B13</u> . rks: Evaluator: <u>Alice Duffee Healy, APD Preservation LLC</u>	developed into a primarily residential area, with a ea is on the northern half of lots 39 and 40 and a no. <i>(see Continuation Sheet 4 of</i>) (1-3 story commercial building)
During variety portion B11. *B12. • "F • Ba • Ci 200 (<u>Jul</u> 8 Remai *B14.	g the last quarter of the nineteenth century, "Green's Addition" of of one- and two-story, wood-frame houses. The current project ar n of lot 38 (see figure on Continuation Sheet 4 of 8. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) <u>HP6</u> References: Historic Resource Evaluation," January 2025. owers, A.B. <u>Map of Sonoma County, California</u> . 1867. ity of Santa Rosa. <u>Santa Rosa General Plan 2035</u> . 2 November 109. Updated October 2024. <u>Http://www.srcity.org/DocumentCenter/View/24327/Santa-Rosa-General-Plan-2</u> <u>5-PDFOctober-2024/B13</u> . rks: Evaluator: <u>Alice Duffee Healy, APD Preservation LLC</u> *Date of Evaluation: <u>January 2025</u>	developed into a primarily residential area, with a ea is on the northern half of lots 39 and 40 and a no <i>(see Continuation Sheet 4 of</i>) (1-3 story commercial building) (Sketch Map with north arrow required.)





State of California - The Resources Agency DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION	Primary# HRI # Trinomial	
CONTINUATION SHEET Property Name:		631 Fifth Street, Santa Rosa
Page <u>5</u> of <u>8</u>		
*Recorded by: Alice Duffee Healy	*Date Jan. 2025	X Continuation Update
*P5a. Photographs: (CONTINUED)		
	West Elevation (rear)	





ⁱ Sonoma County Records, Official Records Book 2592, p. 670.

DPR 523L (9/2013)

State of California - The Resources Agency DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION	Primary# HRI # Trinomial		
CONTINUATION SHEET			
Property Name:		<u>635 H</u>	ifth Street, Santa Rosa
Page <u>8</u> of <u>8</u>			
*Recorded by: <u>Alice Duffee Healy</u> *Date	Jan. 2025	X Continuation	Update
*B10. Significance: (CONTINUED)			
Current Historical Status:			
The building is 52 years old, is not within any of "Cultural Heritage Survey." It is not included in an of Historic Preservation's "Built Environment Resc the property in their windshield survey of the "Dov Fifth Street "does not appear potentially eligible fo	y other state, national or lo urce Directory (BERD)." Ir vntown Station Area, 1946 : listing."	cal surveys and is not 2021 Architectural R 1974" and made a pro	included in the California Off esources Group (ARG) includ eliminary determination that (
<u>Criterion A - Association with Significant Event</u> , commercial growth and expansion. This commercia This single structure as an individual structure, how	il pattern in Santa Rosa was	s typical of communit	ies across the country at this ti
Criterion B – Association with Significant Person: building (Lawrence Simons) was active in Sonoma (projects. He was not known for employing or inconsequential, do not rise to the level of historic.	County through the 1960s a	nd 1970s and focused	his work on civic and comme
<u>Criterion C – Architecturally Distinctive</u> : The moc master builder or architect.	est commercial building is	s neither architectura	lly significant nor the work c
<u>Criterion D – Potential to Yield Information</u> : The p practices that would, with additional study, provid above ground and did not involve survey or evalua-	e important information. N	ly evaluation of this p	roperty was limited to resour
It is my professional opinion, therefore, that the built Register, or Santa Rosa's "Cultural Heritage Survey *B12. References: (CONTINUED)		teria for listing in the	California Register, the Natio
Elliot, Jeff. "Today you saw Cal Caulkins." 6 Augu	st 2018. (http://santarosahisto	ory.com/wordpress/2018	3/08/today-you-saw-cal-caulkins
Fraser-Munro, J. P. <u>History of Sonoma County V2</u> , Francisco, CA: Alley, Brown & Co. Publis	Including its Geology, Top	e i	0 0
LeBaron, Gaye, Dee Blackman, Joann Mitchell and Services, 1985.	l Harvey Hanson. <u>Santa R</u>	osa: A Nineteenth Ce	<u>entury Town</u> . Clarity Publishi
LeBaron, Gaye and Joann Mitchell. <u>Santa Rosa: A T</u>	wentieth Century Town. C	larity Publishing Ser	vices, 1993.
Lewis Publishing Company. Illustrated History of	Sonoma County, California	1. Chicago, IL: Lewis I	Publishing Company, 1889.
McIntire & Lewis. Official Map of the County of Sc			
Morrow, Irving F. AIA. "Architectural Regions: Dec (https://www.survivorlibrary.com/library/arch	itect_and_engineer_vol_143	-144_1940.pdf).	
Munro-Fraser, J.P. <u>History of Sonoma County, Incl</u> Francisco, CA: Alley, Bowen & Co. Publis		aphy, Mountains, Val	<u>leys and Streams V1 (1879</u>). Sa
Peterson, Geraldine and Dan Peterson. <u>Santa Rosa'</u> 1982.	<u>s Architectural Heritage</u> . Sa	anta Rosa, CA: Sonon	na County Historical Society,
Reynolds & Proctor. Atlas of Sonoma. Santa Rosa,	CA: 1898.		
Thompson, Robert A. <u>Historical and Descriptive Sl</u>			
Thompson, Thomas H. <u>New Historical Atlas of Sor</u> Sonoma County Historical Society, 2003).	<u>ioma County</u> . Oakland, CA	A: Thos. H. Thompsor	& Co., 1877 (reprinted by
<u>Online resources</u> : <u>www.accessible.com</u> <u>www.calisphere.unive</u>	rsitvofcalifornia edu	www par	<u>celquest.com</u>
www.accessible.com www.loc.govwww.oh	p.parks.ca.gov	www.ger	eaologybank.com
www.archives.com www.cdnc.ucr.edu	www.newspapers.		hives.org